MO Modification Committee


meeting No. 10 minutes 
03 December 2007
	Attendee
	Role
	Company

	Members/Alternates

	Tanya Gill
	Chair/Supplier Member
	BGES

	David Naughton
	RA Member
	CER

	Juliet Corbett
	RA Member
	NIAUR

	Colin Spain 
	Generator Member
	Tynagh Energy Ltd

	Stephen Walsh
	Generator Member
	ESB Power Generation

	Garrett Blaney
	Generator Member
	Viridian Power and Energy Ltd

	Roy Foreman
	Generator Member
	NIE PPB

	Iain Wright
	Vice Chair/Supplier Member
	Airtricity Ltd

	Karl Leavy 
	Supplier Member
	ESB Customer Supply

	William Steele
	Supplier Member (Alternate)
	NIE Energy (Supply)

	Denis Kelly
	MDP Member
	NIE T&D

	John Dunphy
	MDP Member (Alternate)
	MRSO, ESB Networks 

	Rodney Doyle
	SO Member 
	TSO, EirGrid 

	Gill Nolan
	MO Member
	SEMO

	Observers/ Proposers

	Rhiannon Jones
	Supplier Member (Alternate)
	BGES

	Philip Newsome
	RA Member (Alternate)
	CER

	Fergus Sheils
	Generator Member (Alternate)
	Tynagh Energy Ltd

	Niamh Delaney
	MO Member (Alternate)
	SEMO

	Kris Kennedy
	Observer
	SONI

	Jon O’Sullivan
	Observer
	SEMO

	Ciara Corby
	Modification Panel Secretariat
	SEMO

	Nadim Al Harari
	Observer
	Logica CMG

	Emeka Chukwereh
	Observer
	Airtricity Ltd

	Hugh Mullany
	Observer
	CER

	Claire Kierans
	Observer
	ESB International Independent Generation

	Joan Sheedy
	Observer
	ESB PGEN

	Ann Grey
	Observer (by phone)
	SSE (Ireland)

	Kevin O’Neill
	Observer
	NIAUR


	Item
	Mod.
	Proposer
	Discussion Points
	Actions/
Comments
	Outcome/
Vote Result 

	New  Mods 

	1
	Mod_95_07  Correction of inconsistent publication timings in Appendix E and AP6
	Gill Nolan (MO)
	No questions or comments. 


	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 

	2
	Mod_96_07  Change to the payment period of the Variable and Fixed Market Operator Charge 
	B McAuley (MO)

	G Blaney: Q: why is this Mod necessary? 

J OSullivan: This request is at the behest of suppliers due to the Christmas period. Will not give MO an advantage but makes the process more flexible.
	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 

	3
	Mod_06_07 Interconnector Transmission Loss Factors


	Jon O'Sullivan (MO)
	MO are withdrawing this as it is a Mod to enduring code, there will be further analysis and discussion on Interconnector.  
G Blaney: What will the process be for discussion?


	J.O’S to set up meeting with Interconnector Administrator and participants  (before next Mod Meeting, Feb 4th) 
	Outcome: 

Withdrawn 

	4
	Mod_09_09 Administered Settlement – Meter Generation for Demand Side Units


	Jon O'Sullivan (MO)
	Presented by G Nolan. This Mod is to clarify that in event of system collapse, there is no DQ available for demand side units, as if there is no meter generation, its not possible to set a DQ; proposed to set this to zero.

I Wright: Q.Is it really necessary if there is a default value?
J OSullivan: If there is an electrical system collapse then the MSQ = Metered Generation for all units (no current rule for this).
	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 



	5
	Mod_25_07 Commercial Offer Data for Interconnector Units


	Jon O'Sullivan (MO)
	This Mod aims to remove any ambiguity around how PQ pairs for interconnector units are applied. Response to queries into helpdesk.

K Kennedy: Requested further explanation of this Mod.

JO’S: There are 2 availability controls; an active capacity that IA assigns and also set max import and export capacity in systems. 

If Units have bought capacity, you set the capacity in market systems to be zero. Units set their own internal max import and export availability through central market systems, then set max import and export in central market systems to be 0. You can’t trade more than what is traded in MITS system. 
	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 



	6
	Mod_28_07 Deletion of Clause 7.29


	Jon O'Sullivan (MO
	G Nolan: It is proposed to remove 7.29 as settlement statement version is already displayed.

I Wright: Would suggest that this refers to G13.11 and not G13.10? G Nolan: Correct, this will be updated in the FRR.

G Blaney: Can we clarify if there are changes to the code that don’t come through Mods Panel?  
JO’S: would like clarity on 1. whether or not RA’s have this authority level & 2. where the RA’s exercise this right, can they demonstrate a business process,  outlining what their obligation is to inform the mods committee?
	RA’s to revert with clarification on authority regarding Modifications by the next meeting on this issue.
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 



	7
	Mod_32_07 Interpretation of 1st Price Quantity Pair


	Jon O'Sullivan (MO)
	G Nolan: It is proposed to provide clarity on how PQ pairs are treated at bottom. If the least PQ Price is below min output and is excluded, then 1st PQ pair above min output applies from that point down to min output.
TG: Is this an improvement, a clarification, or a correction?

G Nolan: A clarification; if question arises about what price applies for the quantity in the event that lowest PQ pair is excluded, (it is reasonably clear that is the PQ above ‘min out’  but this provides further clarity). This is the way the MSP software works at the moment. Objective to remove any ambiguity in the code, not a change in code.

G Blaney: Q about dispatch: 
R Doyle: SO thought this was already intuitive.
	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 



	8
	Mod_63_07 Calculation of DOP for Predictable Price Takers
	Niamh Delaney

(MO)
	N Delaney presented this Mod: 

G Blaney: Would be useful to put proposer's name and affiliation in ‘raised by’ field in future mods. No further comments.
	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 

	9
	Mod_80_07 Clarification of  Pumped Storage Cycle Efficiency


	T Morrow

(MO)
	N Delaney presented this Mod: 5.13 Value of cycle should be number >0% <= 100, this is consistent with values that participants usually submit. 

I Wright: if you submitted 80 as a percent as it is currently written, does this not imply a factor, which is .8?

J OSullivan:  If we get .8 in,  its taken at 80%, butsystems may treat it differently: as .08; this is what we are trying to clarify.

IW: This clarification makes things more complicated.

HMullany: Comment as an observer, should update AP4 also which describes number as a ratio.

G Blaney:0 to 100 seems a very broad range for cycle efficiency, is this really needed?

J OSullivan: The laws of physics theoretically allow that you could have between 0 and 100.
S Walsh Technical Offer Data has been approved by SO and passed to MO, if we want to change this , we have to wait a few days. Putting in an additional band is more than we need to do.

T Gill: we should veer towards clarity as much as possible
	MO to take away and discuss with the generator involved and will revert & redraft (AP4) if required.
	Outcome: 

Deferred 

	10
	Mod_81_07 Move spurious Glossary page in Appendix A to Section 8


	M Darcy (MO)
	No comments. 


	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 

	11
	Mod_83_07 Remove Requirement to send Warning Limit Notices for Generators
	Nigel Thomson (MO)
	MO: This was raised at the behest of Generator Participants : provide warning limit notices in accordance with the Code; makes sense for supplier participants but not for generators.  This is causing a lot of confusion for Generators, and if there is a real issue, people may be ignoring them. No comments from Members..
	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 



	12
	Mod_84_07 Modification to Settlement Reallocation process in AP10 
	Anne Ruddy (ESB CS)
	K Leavy: Currently, if supplier and generator are engaging in SRA, the assessment is not carried out by MO until after trading day, so there is a difficulty (if generator appears to be oversubscribed from SRA point of view), requires genco to contact supplier to cancel them or else put credit cover in place at short notice. It would be beneficial if MO would cancel SRA’s, would help participants manage credit cover, to make efficient use of credit cover participants put in place. Would take care of any duplication errors also. Only rejected by MO if they put Genco into credit exposure.

N Delaney: This Mod not required as this is already covered in AP10.
K Leavy: Yes, but it’s not being executed.

JOS: It is now in operation, (not during market trial due to section 8). If you oversubscribe in an SRA then there is cancellation, we had a number of these in go-live.

E Chukwereh made the point that when the cancellation that is done, also cancels your forecast exposure?  in the billing process it’s a longer period, it cancels out future exposures and when it comes around to invoice process your SRA’s are cancelled immediately.
JOS:. The most recently submitted are cancelled 1st, they are cancelled in order of submission. A difference in priority of cancellation is required for credit assessment. Mod required. Business Process and system change. 
If Supplier a puts in 10 SRA’S for 20 million and future generator cash flow is 1 million, what happens? Is this SRA used in calculation of credit cover. 

2 areas of clarification:

1. Do we cancel SRA for the energy invoice? Answer after break from JOS:Yes.

2. If I have a future SRA that will be cancelled when the invoice comes out, is that going to increase the collateral requirement for the generator? Answer after break from JOS: We do cancel future SRAs if that SRA requires an increase in the credit of the generator in accordance with AP09, with the latest in first. Not allow SRA to interfere with future collateral. Comment: This all falls away when section 7 is implemented. If you happened in a years time to put in over SRAs you would have to put in collateral for it. 

Confusion over whether to proceed with Mod. To be confirmed at next Mod panel meeting.
	
	Outcome: Deferred, pending a full Proposer understanding of current situation. This is covered by current practise, (AP10).
.



	24
	Deferred Mod

Mod_72_07 Correction of Excessive Credit Cover Requirement
	E Chukwureh(Airtricity Supply)
	Presentation from E Chukwureh.
W Steele: Will there be further modifications on credit cover? Will this be done at Participant or Party level? 
K.Leavy agreedthat there could be issues associated with party registration. How to implement this Mod without disadvantaging others?
J O’S:  This is quite a significant change, impacts the MO invoicing structure and participant accounts. Logic would have to change in all systems; Navita, CRM and MPI (ABB). 
G Nolan: Need minimum of 2 extra people for a manual workaround and would have to change timelines for Day 1b work
D Naughton: May impact on future roles of SRA in the market as a tradable product.

T Gill: Does the SRA not cover this enough for Airtricity? What is the material benefit of this to participants, to warrant a manual workaround? 

JO’S: Less risk for the participant. Linking Generators to Suppliers. It affects the names on the accounts. 
G Blaney: What kind of man hours are we talking about?

W Steele: Is there a programme of work currently underway for automation of credit cover?

J O’S: We are keeping a small team for day 1b, section 7 changes which include some areas around credit reporting. On top of this there are some significant market issues being discussed at this forum. The people needed to work on these issues are working on day1b. Work will need to be prioritised by someone and worked out as an industry. 

T Gill: Is it worth putting a forum together to discuss these issues?

G Blaney: was concerned that there is too much talk regarding MO constraints .This group provides advice to the RA’s; cost/benefit should be the driver; so we can help RA’s justify this,. 
TGill: the way to address this is to have better information for participants
JO’S: Need to set up an informal discussion to discuss what practicably achievable and a priority, rather than ad-hoc requests.

I Wright: The IGG is a good Model for Rules development and prioritisation.

JO’S: Action on SMO: The MO will arrange 4 fora on: 

1. AP11 for Meter Data Providers;
2. Credit;
3. Interconnectors; 

4. Publication. 

T Gill: Endeavour to have 2 forums before the next mods panel meeting? 
I Wright: It would be nice if the RAs could attend and detail how they propose an SRA liquid market working.

D Naughton: Suggest we set up terms of reference for these meetings.
	MO to arrange appropriate fora; Secretariat to circulate presentation
	Outcome: Deferred pending discussion on all credit cover issues



	13
	Mod_85_07 D-1 SMP Prices  (Daily Ex-ante) to be published by MO in PDF format at 13:00 hours daily


	Hugh McElroy (ESB CS)
	JO’S: Would link this to 86,87,88,89 and 20. There is a broad need for transparent info by participants; in principle agreed this should be provided. To get there needs work, in the interim, it is suggested that we provide a basic Database once a week. Problems with shadow price, not in any Database. Going forward, we would provide a website providing all the other pieces of information. Ex ante not currently available in PDF, only way we can do this is a business workaround so resources are required. We are happy to do it but there is a resourcing issue.

G Blaney: Karl, have you explored doing it yourself?
K Leavy: This preferably should come from an independent source. Customers need to download or get some kind of converter.

D Naughton: from CER perspective, its important this information is released, but the manner in which it is released isn’t of particular interest.

K Leavy: Our staff don’t work 7 days and are constrained by this. 

E Chukwereh: Some customers don’t want PDF as they can’t manipulate the data. Some will want PDF, others will want xml.

JO’S: Would ask that this is withdrawn, MO wants to do this and cost it, as long as the RAs approve it. We’ll talk about it and make a proposal to the RAs.

D Naughton: What is the workload involved?
JO’S: 7 day operation, design Business Process, train staff, to put a PDF up, put a link up, do you want it archived? etc
K Leavy: Ex ante is required.

JO’S: There have been cases where we have had to republish the ex ante, which one do you want? The appropriate modification needs to be thrashed out.

K. Leavy: Agree to defer if appropriate if agreement can be reached with RAs.

D Kelly: Questions the deferral; this won’t result in a change to the code  - which is what we are here to discuss - not file format or technical issues.

T Gill: I don’t think there is any problem in a proposer taking something off stream and seeking a solution to the problem elsewhere. This may be the only forum. 

JO’S: Items like this may not need to be brought to Mods.  The process could be that we pick up the phone to discuss them.
	K Leavy, MO and RAs will discuss the issue.
	Outcome: Deferred, pending discussion



	14
	Mod_86_07 Publication of Shadow Price 


	C Spain 

(Tynagh Energy)
	C. Spain: Proposes the shadow price to be published with MSQ’s at 1 pm in the interest of transparency.

JO’S: Onerous to get out from a systems perspective.  Manual process. To be published at 1 pm, then it will have to go to the vendor. This is not  needed on a daily basis, is sure it will be good enough on a weekly basis. 

S Walsh: Ex ante is used for scheduling and the other for payment.

JO’S: UUC, the MI takes and stores the info that it publishes. SMP is pulled, the shadow price isn’t. If MO comes up with a business effort and gets approval from the RAs then you’ll get it.

T Gill: Progress to a vote and put cost benefit analysis in the FRR?
JOS: 1 extra person required DB development, 1 week and then 1 person to update it on an ongoing basis until we have the longer term solution.

T Gill: was concerned regarding wording in the mod.

S Walsh: has proposed another similar Mod to include other information. Interested in seeing cost between daily and weekly. Should be amended.

JO’S: Goes from 1 man one day a week, to 7 man days.

T Gill: The current Mod talks about daily and ex ante, should keep the word ‘daily’ in and also include ‘ex post’.

I Wright suggested a phased implementation?
	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 

keep the word ‘daily’ in and also include ‘ex post’.

Note Shadow price is priority 1 in FRR in comparison to other information requests.

	15
	Mod_87_07 Publication of aggregated loss adjusted net demand ∑(NDLF) for all suppliers in Ireland(ROI & NI)
	C Ryan (ESB CS)
	JO’S: This is only needed on a monthly basis. Can be delivered in an interim solution through the weekly DB solution, although it would only be needed on a monthly basis, as it relates to capacity.  This could be put into the DB and, longer term, on the website (dependent on the RAs approval).
	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 

	16
	Mod_88_07 Publication of daily actual load summary  
	C Ryan  (ESB CS)
	R Doyle: Who provides this information? Will you be calculating this separately?

JOS: I think the TSO’s provide this.

W Steele: Does this Mod not refer to a report that is currently being published?

JO’S: It’s stopped. The RAs said it was no longer a requirement.

I Wright: Can you explain why each individual day is missing 6 hours? And can’t the 6 hours be included in the next days data? Its within the rules.

JO’S: Refer to the MOUG presentation on the website.

I Wright: It would be useful to do a piece of work on reporting generally and how it can be implemented in the broader scheme of things. In the shadow price FRR, mention that there are other similar mods but that the shadow price Mod supersedes all. 

JO’S: Prioritisation of work is not being managed in these meetings.

T Gill: The modified proposal that D+1 and D+4 data should be included but on the proviso that this is not of the highest priority.
	J O’SULLIVAN JO’S to check if its in the database, could be a vendor change.


	Outcome: Deferred


	17
	Mod_89_07 Inclusion of Meter Data Provision timelines in the Settlement Calendar, and clarification to definitions in AP16
	H Mullany (SIMDRACS)
	I Wright: Confused re ‘weekday’ definition.

Clarification: Week days include bank holidays. A Week day is not a week day only when the MO specifies in the settlement calendar, e.g. some bank holidays. 


	
	Outcome: 

Recommended for Approval (Unanimous) 



	18
	Mod_90_07 Consumption Adjustments handling long term meter data errors


	H Mullany (SIMDRACS)
	G Nolan: Errors don’t just happen after the last scheduled resettlement, but could happen after 13 months; will error not be ongoing?  What’s the incentive to fix it?

H Mullany: Under the code they are obliged to submit the correct data.

G Nolan: Will this require the MO to do this every 3 months?

H Mullany: Very unlikely that the 3 thresholds will be hit. 

D Kelly: You have to bother doing it as you have a customer and a large discrepancy.

I Wright: Number of different scenarios, incorrect metering, theft etc. How can MDP’s guarantee that data won’t be double counted?

D Kelly: Usually errors have gone undiscovered for some period of time. Normally small adjustments are sorted out between supplier and customer.

I Wright: There are a lot of scenarios and implications.

W Steele: Also sorting out error supplier units.

R Foreman: Don’t understand the funding of this
H Mullany: Comes from the error supplier unit.

D Kelly: Threshold is very high here so everyone knows about it.

H Mullany: Will take this away and redraft.

G Nolan: Does this apply to energy only or also to capacity charges, imperfections?  
H Mullany: Yes it would. N Al Harari: Formula is in appendix.

G Nolan: Currency costs and interest? Normal communication costs would not apply, may need to be carved out of appendix G.

N Al Harari: MO will calculate, Currency costs are not included, wouldn’t be much, within jurisdiction.
	H Mullany: will welcome  feedback over the next 10 working days; will redraft and send it into the group before Christmas. 


	Outcome: Deferred.

	19
	Mod_91_07 Supplier of Last Resort process change


	H Mullany (SIMDRACS)
	Presentation from H Mullany:.

JO’S: One issue is that in NI it might take longer to get rid of a Supplier.

H Mullany:: There is another Mod which will be presented at the next meeting which will complete the picture and the mods committee may consider deferring this until both mods can be viewed in conjunction.

G Nolan: Where a suspension process has been rectified, there is an agreement to deregister, and the party rectifies what has occurred, i.e. get re-registered, they won’t need to pay a fee, why?

H Mullany: Under the terms of the code they are not obliged to pay a fee. They get their unit back but not their customers. This will not happen in the north.
	Secretariat to circulate H Mullany slide illustrating the SOLR process from retail perspective. Members have 10 working days to respond to HM. 


	Outcome: Deferred;
consider both modifications together.

	20
	Mod_92_07 Emergency 

Communications between MDPs and Market Operator
	H Mullany (SIMDRACS)
	H Mullany presented; clarification provided.


	
	Outcome: Recommended for Approval (unanimous).



	21
	Mod_93_07 Demand Data Submissions to Support Non-Firm Access Calculations for all forms of Trading Site 


	H Mullany (SIMDRACS)
	S Walsh:  thought this was not allowed?

H Mullany: This was not what was discussed in the run up to market trial. Would you be amenable to register them as an Associated Supplier Unit? It is allowed.

S Walsh: I believe you can’t get the demand on a calendar day basis.

Presentation from H Mullany.

G Nolan: In principal we support it but it is a very big implementation. Impacts both the MO and the TSO. 

3 man weeks to document, will take the Vendors a number of week and estimated cost of in the region of Eur 30,000 to respond. Furthermore, we will need to lapse time on day 1b project.

T Gill: Benefit?

JOS: Currently generators are not getting any benefit of on site demand. Could reduce their MEC by e.g. 10 MWs.

K Leavy: What’s an indicative cost?

JOS: circa half a million.

G Blaney: Q needs to be asked whether it is worth further consideration, i.e. spend 30k and time on this. Are we happy enough to justify it? 

T Gill: We have to be aware of 1. Cost. 2. Implementation of day 1b.

S Walsh: Other option to do this is through TSSU.

H Mullany/JOS: Costs to set yourself up as TSSU though and get a license. 

T Gill: Appreciate that this has been brought to our attention, may not be as high as priority as some things that have been discussed today.

R Foreman: There are other issues that should be changed e.g. dual fuel.

R Doyle: Yes. But this can only be implemented through the T&SC. A more formal way of handling items like this may be required or else things may fall away. 

JO’S: Is it the right thing to do? If so, approve. The RAs will decide whether it should be implemented and look at the cost.

I Wright: Concern that we have a new market and contractors are trying to milk us.

JO’S: Entitled to replace them at any point but the consumers have paid for the warranties.
	H Mullany and  S Walsh to discuss offline.


	Outcome: Deferred 



	22
	Mod_94_07 Calculation Rounding


	Gill Nolan (MO)
	S Walsh: Similar to a previous one limiting amounts to an SRA. At any case where there is rounding for Integers we won’t know what has been implemented. The code should dictate the rounding, not the developers/systems dictating this.

JO’S: Yes. We have brought it to the attention of the committee and we are not compliant with the code. If we were to be audited I would have to say that brought it to the attention of the panel but that it wasn’t deemed material. 

G Blaney: Could specify the rounding in the code.

N Al Harari: AP5 dictates rounding precisions.

JO’S: I don’t think you are going to get everything covered. We can look at the wording again but it may be difficult.

I Wright: Over time, it will even itself out, + one day and – the next day.

G Blaney: Makes the code vague.

JOS: MO to check whether the definition of IT Systems covers software, may come up with a better wording.

TG: There are concerns over both voting to approve or also voting to reject it.
I Wright: 3.90 of version 4.0 says you are not allowed to constrain rounding.

N Al Harari: AP5 says its 8 decimal places. The MO should be operating to this. 3.91, refers to AP5 which is to 8 decimal places. The only reason we might need this Mod is to emphasize that software is included in IT systems.
	MO to take away and look at it
	Outcome: Deferred 

.



	23
	Deferred Mod

Mod_54_07 Modification to the upward revision of Modified Interconnector Unit Nominations subsequent to an increase in the Available Transfer Capacity
	E Chukwureh(Airtricity Supply)
	I Wright: Last meeting more detail was requested on impact to SONI.

K Kennedy: Apologies as to initial lack of response due to internal miscommunication. In the interim contacted software developers and at the moment have no other choice but to apply the IUN rules. Have been told it would entail very expensive system changes. 

I Wright: Standing instruction: When capacity goes down we are exposed in the BETTA market. The obligation is on the SO to tell us as soon as possible. The SO have other things on their mind.

K Kennedy: Can we discuss at our IA forum? When MITS does the processing it is done for all IUNS. Cost estimate of 100k. For the number of times thisoccurs, this may not be feasible.
	JO’S to arrange IA meeting and discuss with SONI.


	Outcome: Deferred 

.




Date of Next Meeting: 10:00 p.m – 13:30 p.m on Feb 4th 2008 in Dublin  (venue tbc)
Mods to be in by Jan 16th 2008 (13 days in advance of meeting)
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